Questions and Responses Series 3

Residential Child Care

SSA/RCC-13-001-S

44. Question: “High Intensity Group Home Programs for Teen Girls with Anti-Social Behaviors” Please define and give examples of “anti-social behaviors.” 

Response: Examples of anti-social behaviors include but are not limited to, fighting, school suspension or expulsion due to behavior, criminal activity, gang affiliation, assaults on peers or adults, refusal to follow rules in placement.

45. Question: Closing Date – There is no number of copies specified and the date     and time for receipt is not given.

Response: The RFP has been amended to include this information. Please refer to Amendment #1 issued on September 18, 2012.

46. Question:  Certificate of Need – “Documentation required from a sending facility (facility where the child is currently place and that is requesting an evaluation/assessment) to be provided to the LDSS Case Manager, for any child recommended for a Residential Treatment Center placement.”  Does this mean DHR expects all RCCs to conduct evaluations required for a CON if a child in placement needs RTC placement?

 Response: No, this means that documentation such as the child’s latest Individual Service Plan (ISP) must be made available from the RCC Provider to the LDSS Case Manager so that an evaluation and Certificate of Need (CON) application can be conducted. 
47. Question:  – Relative – Is DHR saying that only persons who are caring for a minor child, are at least 21 years of age, or 18 and married to someone over the age of 21 qualify as a relative?
Response: When the RFP speaks to a relative, it is referring to an adult relative that may substitute as a caretaker.  The rest of the definition on page 17 states that the relative is also an individual who is related by blood, marriage, adoption or having a strong kinship bond.

48. Question: – MBE Requirements – 2.32 states that the Offeror “is required to attempt to achieve the MBE goal”, while 2.34 (B)(4) states the Contractor “shall accomplish an amount of work not less that the MBE subcontract goal.”  These 2 statements seem to be contradictory.  Please clarify.
Response: The requirements are not inconsistent.  There is a 5% MBE goal for Offerors proposing 25 or more beds.  If you fall into this category, the law imposes a good faith requirement that Offerors actively seek out MBE subcontracting opportunities and make every effort to meet the goal established.  These reasonable efforts must be made and demonstrated before a waiver may be accepted.
49. Question: Family Centered Practice – This section stipulates that FIM’s are to occur at least every 90 days, however, Attachment T indicates FIMs occur at 5 trigger points.  Which is correct?
Response: Section 3.4 M 1 of the RFP was amended per Amendment #4 dated October 22, 2012. 
50. Question:  – Contract Monitoring – Attachment O indicates that CANS Assessments are to be sent to LDSS Case Worker.  CANS is completed in SCYFIS.  LDSS Caseworker may have access to these reports; there is no reason to have to send them.
Response:  This is correct. LDSS caseworkers have access to completed reports in SCYFIS.  See Amendment #4 dated October 22, 2012.
51. Question: Specific Requirements for each RCC Program Category –This section erroneously states that there are Special Licensing Standards for High Intensity Group Homes.  There are only additional licensing standards for Therapeutic Group Homes
Response: High Intensity Group Homes may have a Therapeutic Group Home (TGH) license and if so, are required to meet the additional COMAR Special Licensing Standards for TGH.  
52.  Question: Specific Requirements for each RCC Program Category -Four of the seven categories must include one to one staff ratios in their budget.  How will DHR fund this if the Governor freezes or restricts provider rates for FY14?

Response: Providers that have a FY 13 IRC rate letter must submit the letter as their Financial Proposal.  Other than the new High Intensity Program for Teen Girls, there are no new programs or program requirements.  Therefore, all costs associated with providing the services for each program should have been included in the Providers budgets.  The Department will not reimburse Providers for services that should have been included in their budget.  Please note that Providers may revise their budgets required to be submitted for FY14, however, there is no guarantee that any increases will be accepted. 
53. Question: High Intensity Group Home – There are no LOIs for High Intensity Group Homes other than TGH.  LOIs for regular group homes and TGHs are different due to different licensing requirements.  Which LOIs are referenced here?
Response: The LOIs for Group Homes has a lower level of intensity (as outlined on page 55 of the RFP).  The LOI for the High Intensity Group Homes (page 56 of the RFP) is more commensurate, but may not be exact, with the LOIs for a therapeutic setting.  Offerors are required to use, at a minimum, the LOIs established in the RFP.
54. Question:  – RCC Performance Requirements – Is the minimum score set where the number of required beds is met?

Response: Yes. The minimum standard is derived from the Performance Measures and will be equal to the lowest performance score for each RCC Program category.

55. Question: What happens if a provider does not achieve the minimum acceptable level? 

Response: Page 66 and Page 67 (Section 3.4.2.1 C – Corrective Action Plans) of the RFP speaks to not meeting minimum standards and the requirements and timeframes around meeting the minimum standards which includes as a beginning step a Corrective Action Plan.   

56. Question: What are the specific criteria for placement on the Hot List?

Response: A Provider may be placed on the hot list, for example, as a result of not submitting the Provider Annual Fiscal Audit by the required deadline and the Provider has not requested and been approved for an extension; licensing sanctions, and critical and/or repeated contract or licensing violations.
57. Question: Example shows incentive based on 4% of 20. What does 20 represent?      The provider referenced only has 16 beds.  
Response: The 20 refers to the maximum allowable incentive points that a vendor can achieve.  The amount of beds does not factor into the maximum allowable incentive points.

58. Question:  Volume II Financial (A) states that Offeror’s need only submit their FY2013 Rate Letter.  If this rate does not cover the cost of providing the services outlined in the proposal, should the provider submit a new budget?  How is this process coordinated with the IRC rate setting process?
Response: The only financial proposals to be submitted for current programs are that of the 2013 IRC rate letter.  Offerors applying for a new program will submit a 2013 IRC budget packet to the procurement office with the proposal. So if you're applying, say, for the new program for violent teen girls, then you would send your budget packet to the procurement office. If you're a current group home, and you just want a new budget but it's not a new program, you have to use the current FY-13 rate letter.  See also, response number 54 above.
59. Question: Do you have to be MBE licensed to bid on this program?

Response: A Prime Contractor can be MDOT MBE certified but they do not need to be. If a Offeror is awarded 25 or more beds than they will have to subcontract with MDOT MBE certified entities.
60. Question: I understand the contract will be for three years. I was wondering how we go about soliciting MBE subcontractors. Do we need to quote them an amount based on annual expenses or the expenses over a three year period?

Response: We would base the 5% on the total base contract over a 3 year period (36 months).  The 5% is not just limited to expenses.
61. Question: In Amendment 3, Item #6, the References section is listed following the Forms section. However, in Attachment P (revised 10/16/12), the References section is listed before the Forms section. Can DHR advise which the correct order for placement within the proposal?

Response: Attachment P "Checklist For Proposal Submission" has been amended in Amendment #4 to reflect order of placement.
62. Question: In Amendment 3, the instructions indicate that “Reference letters should be submitted by the reference source directly to the Offeror in a separately sealed envelope for inclusion with the Offeror’s Proposal.”

Since these are to be provided in separately sealed envelopes, can DHR clarify that only one envelope is to be provided with our original copy (rather than sealed envelopes for the original as well as the six copies)? 

Or, if a courtesy copy of the reference letter is also provided to the Offeror, can that copy be placed within the proposal?
Response: Three original references letters are to be submitted in separately sealed envelopes only with the original Technical volume. 

63. Question: I am confused because in one place in the RFP we are told to use the LOI chart that is shown; then in Amendment No. 2 it says to go into SCYFIS and make updates and have our licensing specialist sign off. Finally, since we will be submitting rate letters with the financial proposal, shouldn't the LOIs approved at the time that the budget was approved accompany the RFP?
 Response: These two statements are not contradictory. In responding to the RFP and what program category's an Offeror wants to respond to, an Offeror needs to meet the minimum LOI requirement as outlined in the RFP. That may mean, in rare instances, that an Offeror may need to change their staffing/and or services to meet the minimum LOI requirements and an adjustment to the SCYFIS LOI for their Program would need to be done with approval of Office of Licensing and Monitoring staff. Yes, the financial proposal is a current rate letter and the LOIs were approved at the time of the rate letter submissions. Please ensure that the minimum LOI requirement matches the requirement of the category applying to in the RFP. Some Offerors will be submitting proposals for the new high intensity category and therefore would be submitting a full budget packet to procurement.
64. Question: I currently have an eight bed group home for girls ages 16-21. I'm interested in expanding this to 13 beds, which is the new regular group home need specified by DHR for Southern MD. My current approved rate reflects the current eight beds I have. Do I submit my current rate letter and a revised budget that reflects 13 beds? 

Response: The Provider's current license would need to support the proposed number of beds. Providers would need to follow all IRC rules regarding requesting of additional beds on their rate letters. The RFP does not request that a new budget packet be submitted for existing programs only that the FY13 IRC rate letter be submitted with the proposal. If your rate letter is amended by the IRC, the amended letter must be obtained in sufficient time for submission with the proposal by the RFP Closing Date.
65. Question:  This is a question relating to the Financial Proposal for the above referenced RFP. Our current RCC Contract No. SSA/RCC-11-057-A2 was modified (see attached) to change the number of our medically fragile contract beds from 14 beds to 15 beds for our Capitol Heights Medically fragile Program. Since our FY2013 Approved Rate Letter (which we are required to submit in lieu of a budget) states 14 Medically Fragile beds instead of 15 Medically Fragile beds, the question is: Should we attach a copy of Appendix 3, Page 2 of the modified contract (see attached) along with a copy of our FY2013 Approved Rate Letter for our Financial Proposal or should we submit a budget for this program reflecting the change?

Response: If you are submitting a proposal for an existing Program, then the only requirement is that you submit the current FY13 rate letter. The amount of beds your agency requests have to be supported by your rate letter and license.

66. Question: This questions concerns Attachment R. We operate one program and one program site in Montgomery County. In the prior RFP, due to the specialized nature of our program as a vocational/educational "on-the-job" training program, we made noted that we would serve all geographical areas in Maryland. The RFP is to procure Residential Child Care Services not vocational/educational etc. We would submit one Attachment R and the county would be Montgomery. My question is, "Is there any way to note that we wish our program to be available to all geographical regions while we only have one program site in Montgomery County?" Or is this answered by Question 29 in Series 2 Q&A, that is, the local DSS determines based on needs and available programs as to placement regardless of the jurisdiction in which the program operates? 

Response: Please submit all proposals according to the requirements in page 41 of the RFP, "Estimated Department Needs for RCC Services". For example, if you are submitting a proposal for a medically fragile program, the geographical region/jurisdiction would be statewide. If you are submitting a group home proposal, there are several different geographical regions/jurisdictions to which you can respond. Secondly, you are correct that the LDSS determines placement based on need. 

67. Question: This question is in regard to 3.4.1.D. Does this replace the High 
Intensity Group Home category in the 2011 RFP? If so, does this section D. include High Intensity Group Homes as identified by their LOIs? The LOI's in each program category are the required LOIs for that category. If a Provider is submitting a proposal for a program that they currently have a contract with DHR for, then their LOIs have already been approved through the Office of Licensing and Monitoring (OLM). If the Provider is submitting a proposal for a new program then the Provider would be submitting a budget packet with their proposal which would include the LOI confirmation sheet that OLM would be signing off on. In addition does the one-one staff-child ratio apply to the licensed number of beds (i.e. licensed capacity of 16 requires 16 staff on site 24/7 365days/year) or does it apply to the number of beds for which we are seeking a contract (6 beds requires 6 staff on site 24/7 365days/year)? If a child needs one on one services then, it applies to the contracted bed amount. Not all children may require one on one services. If the response to my question 3, determines that Our House may not apply as a HIGH Program, we would then apply as a GHP? Is there any problems attached with changing the type of program that we are applying 
under from the last RFP? 

Response: A Provider can submit a proposal for any one of the program categories as long as they have a license to support the request. If the Provider is submitting a request for a contract for a new program, then a full budget packet would need to be submitted along with the proposal.
68. Question: So I understand you correctly that chart F on page 70 is the performance measures for the technical part of the RFP? Does that -- just constituting the technical part? And if so, did I understand correctly that the technical part and the financial part are evaluated separately? When you combine the technical the end cost, how much is a cost worth, versus a technical?

Response:  Performance measures, although most important is only one of the technical criteria considered for evaluation purposes.  Both the technical and financial proposal will be evaluated and ranked separately.  A composite ranking will then be given to all proposals and assigned a ranking of one, two, three, four, etc. 

69. Question: How would a provider determine whether or not their group home is subject to the Medicaid rehab option?

Response: It depends on the child and services that the child receives. You may contact DHR’s Cost Allocation and Revenue Management office to confirm your enrollment. The contact person’s name is April Abel-Tongue, Program Administrator, at 410-767-7355 or aabel@dhr.state.md.us.  All of our group home Providers are encouraged to enroll in the Medicaid Rehab Option through our Cost Allocation Department at the Department of Human Resources.

70. Question: If we applied for and received a waiver during the 2010 submission, can we be considered for another waiver? If so, what is the waiver deadline?

Response: This is a new solicitation.  All Offerros subject to the MBE goal are expected to use good faith efforts to try to achieve the goal.  However, after reasonable efforts have been taken to meet the goal and the Offeror is unable to do so, then a waiver may be requested. All requests for waivers will be reviewed individually and separate and apart from any prior requests.  Please review Section 2.34D of the RFP for deadlines and waiver requirements.

71. Question: If an agency does apply for a waiver and it is denied, are they still eligible for contract award?

Response: No, if a waiver request is denied, the provider is not eligible for contract award.

